St Joseph, Hull

Boothferry Road, Hull, East Yorkshire

Part 1: Core data

1.1 Listed grade: Not listed

1.2 Conservation area: No

1.3 Architect: Roper, Spencer & Hall (conversion)

1.4 Date(s): 1951-2

1.5 Date of visit: 11 October 2007

1.6 Name of report author: Nicholas Antram

1.7 Name of parish priest and/or contact(s) made on site: James Delaney
1.8 Associated buildings: presbytery and church hall

1.9 Bibliographic references:

Middlesbrough Diocesan Yearbook 2007

Carson, Robert: The First 100 Years — A History of the Diocese of Middlesbrough
1878-1978

Pevsner, N. & Neave, D.: The Buildings of England, Yorkshire: York and the East
Riding, Penguin Books 1995



Part 2: Analysis
2.1 Statement of Importance

A curiosity rather than a building of any particular architectural or
historic significance, being a Victorian farmhouse converted to a
church. The two stained glass windows in the sanctuary are of some
interest.

2.2 Historical background

St Joseph’s unusually was converted from a double-fronted Victorian farmhouse. The
disused house was purchased in 1926, together with about an acre of Land, as a Mass
centre to serve Catholics in the area, about two miles from St Wilfrid’s on The
Boulevard. The house was repaired and cared for by a family who lived there. Around
1930 a hall was built next door and a presbytery was built soon after the war. The
house was converted to the church and opened on 16 May 1952.

2.3 Setting

The church stands at the junction of Boothferry and Pickering Roads, with the hall
and presbytery occupying a large corner plot. Church and hall are axially placed at
the corner, set back from the road, with the presbytery tucked behind the church to
the east. The site is enclosed by utilitarian railings which, though painted black, do
not enhance the appearance. The streets are wide and tree-lined and the area is a
suburb of largely interwar character.

2.4 Description of the building and its principal fittings and furnishings

The proportions of the church alone give away its origin as a farmhouse. The plain
rectangle, with overhanging hipped roof, has been extended with a narthex across the
west front and a polygonal sanctuary at the east end. The walls are rendered and have
sloping Voyseyesque buttresses. To either side are three tall round-arched windows,
two smaller high-level windows to the west and the sanctuary has two smaller similar
windows again. The frames are mostly renewed in UPVC. The narthex has mostly
round-headed windows and doors. Broad west entrance with deeply stepped
surround in red brick. The narthex has a flat roof and a parapet, raised up into a
gable above the entrance.

Apart from the crucifix over the entrance the external appearance of the building is
more redolent of a Nonconformist chapel than a Catholic church. The interior has a
round-headed sanctuary arch with moulded architrave. The west gallery projects into
one third of the nave space. The fittings and furnishings are generally unexceptional,
though there are two stained glass windows in the sanctuary of merit, St Joseph and
Our Lady, in a naive style with bold flat colouring and a strong pattern of lead cames.
Their date or authorship has not been established.



